Beukenlaan 60 5651 CD Eindhoven Tel. +31 (0)40 264 96 10 www.crowe-foederer.nl

MTD HOLDING B.V. AT TILBURG

Annual Report 2017

CONTENTS

LNIS	Page
OUNTANTS REPORT	
Management report	3
ICIAL REPORT	
Consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017	5
Consolidated profit & loss account for the year 2017	6
	7
Notes to the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017	15
Notes to the consolidated profit & loss account for the year 2017	21
Company balance sheet as at December 31, 2017	23
Company profit & loss account for the year 2017	24
Notes to the company financial statements	25
Notes to the company balance sheet as at December 31, 2017	26
Other disclosure	30
R INFORMATION	
Independent auditor's report	31
	Management report Consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017 Consolidated profit & loss account for the year 2017 Notes to the consolidated financial statements Notes to the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017 Notes to the consolidated profit & loss account for the year 2017 Company balance sheet as at December 31, 2017 Company profit & loss account for the year 2017 Company profit & loss account for the year 2017 Notes to the company financial statements Notes to the company balance sheet as at December 31, 2017 Other disclosure R INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The report is available for inspection at the company's premises.

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2017	
CONSOLIDATED ANNOAL ACCOUNTS 2017	

1 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ATDECEMBER 31, 2017

(after appropriation of results)

(after appropriation of results)					
		December 31, 2017		December 31, 2016	
		€		€	€
ASSETS					
FIXED ASSETS					
Tangible fixed assets	(1)				
Rental equipment Other tangible fixed assets		5,448,082 425,573		7,479,738 499,115	
			5,873,655		7,978,853
Financial fixed assets	(2)				
Other receivables			43,424		292,810
CURRENT ASSETS					
Work in progress on construction contracts	(3)		132,690		-
Receivables, prepayments and accrued income	(4)				
Trade debtors Receivables from group companies Taxes and social securities		1,296,330 1,448,260 164,401		2,148,336 693,681	
Other receivables, deferred assets		352,761	_	137,258	
		_	3,261,752	_	2,979,275
Cash and cash equivalents	(5)		624,198		3,697,035

9,935,719	14,947,973

		December :	31, 2017	December 3	31, 2016
		€	€	€	€
LIABILITIES					
GROUP EQUITY	(6)		5,953,575		9,341,722
PROVISIONS	(7)				
Deferred tax liability Other provisions		383,488		542,144 150,000	
			383,488		692,144
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	(8)				
Finance company debt			103,374		210,793
CURRENT LIABILITIES	(9)				
Amounts payable to credit institution Repayment obligation long-term det Trade creditors Payables to group companies Taxes and social securities Other liabilities and accruals and de income	ot	846,625 107,419 904,953 311,934 871,217	_	2,263,928 667,278 521,421 250,404 377,494 622,789	
			3,495,282		4,703,314

9,935,719	14,947,973

2 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

	20	2017		2016	
	€	€	€	€	
Net turnover (10, Expenses	11)	11,902,136		23,685,262	
Cost of subcontracted work and other external charges Wages and salaries Social security charges Pension costs Other personnel expenses Amortisation and depreciation Accomodation expenses Office expenses Car expenses Selling and distribution expenses General expenses	2,455,380 4,619,267 716,620 315,271 595,397 2,865,651 1,205,635 159,964 440,852 323,322 1,064,328	14,761,687	4,440,195 4,620,774 596,847 314,581 805,391 3,346,521 1,347,443 244,230 375,302 385,568 1,432,070	17,908,922	
Out and Community			_		
Operating result		-2,859,551		5,776,340	
Financial income and expenses		-263,069		-101,887	
Result before tax Taxation		-3,122,620 -156,018		5,674,453 -41,668	
Share in result of participating interests		-3,278,638 -135,850	_	5,632,785	
Result after tax		-3,414,488	_	5,632,785	

3 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Activities

The activities of MTD Holding B.V. (CoC file 17187610), with registered offices in Tilburg, and its group holdings mainly consist of providing a total solution for temporary water demand in the sectors Events, Exposition centres and Industry. The services provided are - but not limited to - providing save drinking water, removal of waste water, purification of waste water to grey water, monitoring quality of water and consumption levels and locations, storage of drinking and waste water and providing advice on optimal infrastructure choices for a higher guest satisfaction as well as economic optimization.

Registered address

The registered and actual address of MTD Holding B.V. (CoC file 17187610) is Clara Zetkinweg 4 in Tilburg.

Group structure

The shares of the company are 100% owned by Frontinus Holding B.V. In the consolidated financial statements Frontinus Holding B.V. the financial data of MTD Holding B.V. and its participating interest are included.

List of participating interests

MTD Holding B.V. in Tilburg is the head of a group of legal entities. The overview of the data as required in accordance with Articles 2:379 and 2:414 of the Dutch Civil Code is included below:

accordance with Articles 2.379 and 2.414 of the Dutch Civil Code is included be	Share in	Included in
Name, statutory registered office	issued capital	consolidation
	%	
MTD Nederland B.V. Liempde	100.00	Ja
MTD International B.V. Boxtel	100.00	Ja
MTD pure water Canada Ltd. Vancouver	100.00	Ja
MTD (UK&Ireland) Ltd. Banbury	100.00	Ja
MTD Deutschland GmbH Berlin	100.00	Ja
MTD France SARL Zimmersheim	99.00	Ja
MTD USA LLC Atlanta	100.00	Ja
MTD Brasil Servicos de captacao tratamento e distribulcap Ltda. Rio de Janeiro	99.00	Ja
MTD Fleet Service B.V. Boxtel	100.00	Ja

	%
Name, statutory registered office	Share in issued capital
The partnership has the following capital interests which have been valued at nett capital value:	
MTD Korea 100.00 Pyeongchang	Ja
MTD België BVBA 100.00 Antwerpen	Ja
MTD Russia COO Sochi	Ja

50.00

Consolidation principles

Waves Brasil

Rio de Janeiro

Financial information relating to group companies and other legal entities which are controlled by Frontinus Holding B.V. or where central management is conducted has been consolidated in the financial statements of Frontinus Holding B.V. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles for valuation and result determination of Frontinus Holding B.V. The financial data of MTD Holding B.V. has been processed into the consolidated annual account according to the exemption of article 2:402 BW. A brief profit and loss account is provided for a single annual account. Financial information relating to the group companies and the other legal entities and companies included in the consolidation is fully included in the consolidated financial statements, eliminating the intercompany relationships and transactions. Third-party shares in equity and results of group companies are separately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences (the acquisition date) until the date that control ceases. At acquisition date the assets, provisions and liabilities are measured at fair values. Goodwill paid is capitalised, to which amortisation is charged based on the estimated useful life. The results of participating interests sold during the year are recognised until the moment of disposal.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Title 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost. Valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of the result takes place under the historical cost convention. Unless presented otherwise at the relevant principle for the specific balance sheet item, assets and liabilities are presented at nominal value.

Comparison with previous year

The valuation principles and method of determining the result are the same as those used in the previous year, with the exception of the changes in accounting policies as set out in the relevant sections.

Assumption of continuity

The (consolidated) financial statements of the group are prepared based on the going concern assumption of the company. The management of the company wants to pay special attention to the underlying assumption which are underlying the going concern assumption of the company.

The activities and cash flow of the company can be characterized by extreme season patterns. Due to insufficient insights of the liquidity developments in 2017 and the 1st half year of 2018, mid-2018 it has become clear that the company had to deal with a significant liquidity shortage. In the meantime (Q-2018/beginning 2019) payment agreements have been made with suppliers and with the tax authorities, and where possible, projects have been pre-invoiced. The bank of the company has indicated, that there is no additional structural credit-facility or loan available and the continuation of the existing credit facility will be taken into consideration. At the moment of adoption of the financial statements, there is only for some weeks liquidity available. After that period, the enterprise can no longer meets its payment obligations.

These circumstances indicate the existence of a material uncertainty under which serious doubt could exist about the going concern assumption.

In 2018, the shareholder/managing director has strengthened the management team and they have drawn up a new strategic plan 2019-2020. The focus of the plan is to strengthen the organization, operations, finance, project accounting, management information and focus on a better spread of activities and cash flow. In parallel conversations with several potential new financiers have been started, where the objective is, to fulfil the short- and long-term financial need of the company. These conversations are ongoing and constructive but there are still no binding commitments. The expectations with regard to the development of the orderbook in 2019 en 2020 are positive. The order book for the coming high season looks promising. Management expects to close the year 2019 with a turnover of €18.3 million. (2018: €17.4) and a positive operational result (EBITDA) of €2.4 mio. (2018: €1.3 mio €). The summer Olympics in 2020 will be in Tokyo, Japan. Based on the unique experience and market position of the company around such events, the conversations with potential clients and the concrete preparations, this event will have a very positive effect on the financial position of the company (turnover and profit).

The strengthening of the management team and the new strategic plan in conjunction with the conversations with potential financial institutions and the order book for 2019 and beyond, have been the reason that management has the trust in a sustainable continuation of the enterprise activities. Therefore, the annual accounts have been prepared on the basis of the going concern assumption.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the relevant rules requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. If necessary for the purposes of providing the view required under Section 362(1), Book 2, of the Dutch Civil Code, the nature of these estimates and judgments, including the related assumptions, is disclosed in the notes to the financial statement items in question.

Translation of foreign currency

Receivables, liabilities and obligations denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at balance sheet date. The exchange differences resulting from the conversion as of balance sheet date, taking into account possible hedge transactions, are recorded in the profit and loss account.

Receivables, liabilities and obligations denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currency during the financial year are recognised in the annual account at the exchange rates prevailing at transaction date. The exchange differences resulting from the conversion as of balance sheet date, taking into account possible hedge transactions, are recorded in the profit and loss account.

The foreign group companies and participations that have not been consolidated qualify as operations abroad with another functional currency than that of the company. Regarding the translation of the annual accounts of these operations abroad, the closing rate (as per balance sheet date) is used for balance sheet items and the rate of exchange on the transaction dates is used for items of the profit and loss accounts current rates. The differences in exchange that arise, go directly to the credit or to the debit of the group equity.

PRINCIPLES OF VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are presented at acquisition price less cumulative depreciation and, if applicable, less impairments in value. Depreciation is based on the estimated useful life and calculated as a fixed percentage of cost, taking into account any residual value. Depreciation is provided from the date an asset comes into use.

Depreciation rates

Asset

%

Rental equipment
Other tangible fixed assets

10% - 33%

16% - 33%

If the expected depreciation method, useful economic life and/or residual value are subject to change over time, they are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

Costs of major maintenance are recognized under cost when incurred and if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of the components to be replaced will be regarded as a disposal and taken directly to the profit and loss account. All other repair and maintenance costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account.

A tangible fixed asset is derecognized upon sale or when no further economic benefits are expected from its continued use or sale. The gain or loss arising on the disposal is taken to the profit and loss account.

Financial fixed assets

Participating interests where significant influence is exercised over the business and financial policy are valued according to the equity method on the basis of the net asset value. Participating interests without such influence, are valued at the acquisition price, taking into account a provision for value decreases.

The non-consolidated participating interests whose business and financial policies can be significantly influenced, are valued at the nett capital value that is, however, not lower than zero. This nett capital value is calculated based on the principles of MTD Holding B.V.

Participating interests with negative nett capital value are valued at zero. If the company fully or partly guarantees the liabilities of the participation concerned, or is effectively obliged to enable the participation to pay its (share of) liabilities, a provision is formed. Provisions for doubtful debts which are already deducted from receivables from the participation are taken into account when determining the amount for the provision. Upon initial recognition the receivables on and loans to participations and other receivables are valued at fair value and then valued at amortised cost, which equals the face value, after deduction of any provisions. Deferred tax assets are stated under the financial fixed assets if and to the extent it is probable that the tax claim can be realised in due course. The active deferrals are valued against the nominal value and are usually long-term.

The deferred tax asset based on the offsettable loss is valued at the nominal tax rate of the applicable country.

Impairment of non-current assets

On each balance sheet date, the company assesses whether there are any indications that a fixed asset may be subject to impairment. If there are such indications, the realisable value of the asset is determined. If it is not possible to determine the realisable value of the individual asset, the realisable value of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

An impairment occurs when the carrying amount of an asset is higher than the realisable value; the realisable value is the higher of the realisable value and the value in use. An impairment loss is directly recognised in the income statement while the carrying amount of the asset concerned is concurrently reduced.

Work in progress on construction contracts

The projects in progress commissioned by third parties are valued at the realised project costs plus the allocated profit minus the processed loss and declared terms. No profit is allocated if the result of the projects in progress cannot be reliably estimated. The project costs include costs directly relating to the project, costs that are apportionable to project activities in general and can be allocated to the project, and other costs that can be apportioned to the customer by contract.

Project income and project costs pursuant to projects in progress are processed as income and costs in the profit and loss account proportionally to the attained performance on the balance sheet date. The extent to which the performance has been attained is determined based on the project costs up to the balance sheet date in relation to the estimated total project costs/inspection of the executed part of the project/completion of a physically discernible project part.

When the total for all projects in progress is a debit balance, the total balance is presented as current asset. When the total for all projects in progress is a credit balance, the total balance is presented as short-term debt. Project income realised in the financial year is processed as income in the profit and loss account (nett turnover entry). Project costs have been included in the costs of raw materials and consumables and in the cost of outsourced work and other external costs.

Trade and other receivables

Upon initial recognition the receivables on and loans to participations and other receivables are valued at fair value and then valued at amortised cost, which equals the nominal value, after deduction of any provisions. The fair value and amortised cost equal the nominal value. Any provisions for the risk of doubtful debts are deducted. The provisions are determined based on individual assessment of the receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash is valued at nominal value. If cash equivalents are not freely disposable, then this has been taken into account in the valuation.

Provisions

Deferred tax liability

This tax provision concerns the temporary differences between the valuation in the annual account and the tax valuation of assets and liabilities. The provision is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 25,00%. The provisions are mostly long-term.

Non-current liabilities

On initial recognition long-term debts are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs which can be directly attributed to the acquisition of the long-term debts are included in the initial recognition. After initial recognition long-term debts are recognised at the amortised cost price, being the amount received taking into account premiums or discounts and minus transaction costs.

The difference between stated book value and the mature redemption value is accounted for as interest cost in the profit and loss account on the basis of the effective interest rate during the estimated term of the long-term debts.

Current liabilities

On initial recognition current liabilities are recognised at fair value. After initial recognition current liabilities are recognised at the amortised cost price.

When there are no premiums, discounts or transaction costs, the amortised cost is equal to the nominal value.

PRINCIPLES FOR THE DETERMINATION OF THE RESULT

Determination of the result

The result is determined based upon the difference between the net turnover and the costs and other expenses taking into account the aforementioned valuation principles.

Income and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis. Profit is only included when realized on the balance sheet date. Losses originating before the end of the financial year are taken into account if they have become known before preparation of the financial statements.

Net turnover

The net turnover consists of revenue from the supply of services during the reporting period after deducting discounts, rebates and value added taxes.

Expenses general

Expenses are determined with due observance of the aforementioned accounting policies and allocated to the financial year to which they relate. Foreseeable and other obligations as well as potential losses arising before the financial year-end are recognized if they are known before the financial statements are prepared and provided for all other conditions for forming provisions are met.

Pension premiums

The Dutch Pensions Act is applicable to the pension arrangements and pension contributions are paid to the PMT sector pension fund.

Contributions payable to the pension plan administrator are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account. Contributions payable or prepaid contributions as at year-end are recognized under accruals and deferred income, and prepayments and accrued income, respectively.

A provision is formed for liabilities other than the contributions payable to the pension plan administrator if, as at the balance sheet date, the group has a legal or constructive obligation towards the pension plan administrator and/or to its own employees. If it is possible that settlement of these liabilities will entall an outflow of resources and if a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the liabilities.

Amortisation and depreciation

The depreciation on tangible fixed assets is calculated by using a fixed rate on the acquisition cost based on the expected life cycle. Financial profit and losses on disposal of tangible fixed assets are recorded under amortisation/depreciation.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses comprise interest income and expenses for loans (issued and received) during the current reporting period.

Share in result of participating interests

Where significant influence is exercised over participations, the group's share in the participations' results is included in the consolidated profit and loss account. This result is determined on the basis of the accounting principles applied by MTD Holding B.V.

Taxes

Corporate income tax is calculated at the applicable rate on the result for the financial year, taking into account permanent differences between profit calculated according to the annual account and profit calculated for taxation purposes, and with which deferred tax assets (if applicable) are only valued insofar as their realisation is likely.

PRINCIPLES FOR PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED. CASH FLOW STATEMENT.

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method.

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ATDECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

1. Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation rates

%

Rental equipment Other tangible fixed assets 10% - 33% 16% - 33%

The group is the beneficial, not legal, owner of other tangible fixed assets with a carrying amount of €169K (2016: €245K) under financial lease contracts. For further details of these contracts, please refer to the note on financial leases under non-current liabilities.

2. Financial fixed assets

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
	€	€
Other receivables		
Other receivable	43,424	44,661
Deposits Deferred tax asset	-	3,541 244,608
	43,424	292,810
CURRENT ASSETS		
3. Work in progress on construction contracts		
Work in progress on construction contracts	132,690	-
4. Receivables, prepayments and accrued income		
Trade debtors		
Trade receivables	1,296,330	2,148,336

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
		€
Taxes and social securities		
Value added taxes	164,401	-
Other receivables, deferred assets		
Prepayments and accrued income	352,761	137,258
5. Cash and cash equivalents		
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.	612,354	3,685,989
Cash	11,841	11,046
Money in transit	3	
	624,198	3,697,035

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

6. GROUP EQUITY

Please refer to the notes to the company balance sheet on page 27 of this report for an explanation of the equity.

7. PROVISIONS

Deferred tax liability

The provision for deferred tax relates to temporary differences between fiscal and commercial valuation of the tangible fixed assets and is calculated based on the applicable 25% rate.

tangible fixed assets and is calculated based on the applicable 25% rate.		
	2017	2016
	€	€
Carrying amount as of January 1 Withdrawal	542,144 -158,656	811,117 -268,973
Carrying amount as of December 31	383,488	542,144
	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
	€	€
Other provisions		
Restructuring		150,000
	2017	2016
	€	€
Restructuring		
Carrying amount as of January 1	150,000	450,000
Allocation Withdrawal	-150,000	150,000 -
Carrying amount as of December 31		150,000
8. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES		

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
		€
Finance company debt		
Bank loans		43,330
Financial lease	103,374	167,463
	103,374	210,793

Bank loans

Bank loans

The part of the bank loans entered into the balance sheet with a maturity over five years is nil. The part with a maturity of less than 1 year is included in the current liabilities.

The credit arrangement, as of July 2016 with the ABN AMRO Bank N.V. can be divided into:

- a current account credit of EUR 1.000.000 (5.5%)
- a lending exposure credit of EUR 105.000
- a 2-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 1.000.000 (4%)
- a loan, principal amount of EUR 415.000 (Borgstellings-krediet EURIBOR Loan (one-month Euribor + 2%)
- a loan, principal amount of EUR 130.000 (one-month Euribor + 2,5%).
- a 6-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 1.040.000 (Euribor + 2.5%)
- a 6-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 545.000 (Euribor + 2.5%)

The group provided the following security for the credit arrangement granted by the ABN AMRO Bank N.V.:

- pledge of moveable tangible fixed assets;
- pledge of trade receivables;
- pledge of inventories;
- pledge of all receivables;
- pledge on the receivables and rights arising from the conclusion of work contracts to be concluded and to be concluded;
- pledge on the shares of MTD Nederland B.V.;
- pledge on the shares of MTD International B.V.;
- pledge on the shares of MTD Fleet Service B.V.;
- a personnel surety from Mr. J.A.A.M. Verhoeven in the amount of EUR 500.000 secured with (i) a mortgage, 2e in rang of EUR 500.000 plus 40% covering interest and expenses, on the property mentioned in the mortgage deed of September 13, 2011 for as far as this mortgage has not been cancelled and (ii) this security is provided by Mrs. C.J.M. Verhoeven.
- joint liability for all Dutch consolidated companies
- a surplus guarantee from ABN AMRO Lease N.V.

Financial lease

Financial lease

The leases are leases under which the ownership of the lease asset will be transferred to the group at the end of the term of the lease. Lease payments are fixed annual amounts over the entire term of the lease. The average interest rate for the financial lease is 4,34%. There are no leases with a term of more than 5 years.

9. CURRENT LIABILITIES

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
		€
Amounts payable to credit institutions		
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.	846,625	2,263,928
Repayment obligation long-term debt		
Loans Financing	43,330 64,089	589,980 77,298
	107,419	667,278
Trade creditors		
Creditors	904,953	521,421

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities

Tax entity

Frontinus Holding B.V. is the head of the fiscal unity for VAT in which MTD Holding B.V., MTD Fleet B.V., MTD Nederland B.V. and MTD International take part.

Frontinus Holding B.V. is head of the fiscal unity for corporate income tax in which MTD Holding B.V., MTD Fleet B.V. and MTD Nederland B.V. take part. MTD International is solely taxable for income tax.

Long-term financial obligations

Rental commitments buildings

The company and its group companies have long-term rental commitments which relate to the rent of the office/building. The commitments amount to €2.351.171 which can be broke down as follows:

< 1 year € 846.231 1 - 5 years € 1.504.940

Risks

Tax investigation MTD International BV

The Dutch Tax Authorities has been investigated fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for MTD International BV. Based on the advise/tax memorandum of EY Tax Advisory Eindhoven, the maximum tax risk would be €180.000 (including 8% interest). The provision that has been taken 31th of December 2017 should be sufficient.

Tax investigation MTD Germany GmbH

The German Tax Authorities has been investigated fiscal years 2014, 2015 and 2016. Questions has been raised about the recharge of rental equipment and labour for events in those periods. Total amount of the internal recharge is € 600K. Average German tax is approximately 25%. Our internal review will show and prove the harness of the recharge. We expect that we partially can prove the recharge and expect the provision (in combination with the Tax investigation MTD International BV) is sufficient.

Russia tax (VAT)

In 2018 we have provided temporary water infrastructure for a project in Russia. We have paid VAT for the turnover in Russia. After the project we have recharged the project for rental equipment, including VAT (€ 85K) which we have marked as a tax return. Russian Tax Authorities could raise some questions about the VAT Tax Return.

5 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

10. Net turnover

The revenues decreased in 2017 compared to 2016 with 49.7 %.

11. Net turnover

Emoluments of directors and supervisory directors

Based on section 2: 383 (1) of the Netherlands Civil Code, no mention is made of the remuneration of directors and supervisory directors as the statement can be traced back to a single natural person.

Staff

At the company during 2017, on average 86 employees were employed (2016: 86).

	2017	2016
The breakdown is as follows:		
Netherlands	49	55
Abroad	37	31
	86	86



6	COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
---	---

(after appropriation of results)

(after appropriation of results)						
		December 3	December 31, 2017		December 31, 2016	
		€	€	€	€	
ASSETS						
FIXED ASSETS						
Financial fixed assets	(12)					
Participations in group companies Receivables from group companies		16,894,281 1,220,500		17,478,612 1,116,000		
			18,114,781		18,594,612	
CURRENT ASSETS						
Receivables, prepayments and accrued income						
Receivables from group companies Other receivables, deferred assets		5,552,609 6,277		4,266,427 325		
			5,558,886		4,266,752	

23,673,667 22,861,364

		December 31, 2017		December 3	31, 2016
		€	€	€	€
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES					
EQUITY	(13)				
Issued share capital Share premium reserve Legal reserves Other reserves		18,000 1,262,500 -68,074 4,741,149	_	18,000 1,262,500 -94,415 8,155,637	
			5,953,575		9,341,722
PROVISIONS	(14)				
Other provisions			3,516,523		744,374
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	(15)				
Finance company debt			-		43,330
CURRENT LIABILITIES	(16)				
Amounts payable to credit institution Repayment obligation long-term del Trade creditors Payables to group companies Taxes and social securities Accruals and deferred income		76,593 43,330 86,203 13,909,453 24,387 63,603	44 202 502	1,487,996 173,320 4,374 10,921,827 26,850 117,571	40.704.000
			14,203,569		12,731,938

23,673,667 22,861,364

7 COMPANY PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

	2017	2016
	€	€
Share in result of participating interests after taxes Other income and expenses after taxation	-3,524,475 109,987	5,780,357 -147,572
Result after tax	-3,414,488	5,632,785

8 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Title 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

For the general principles for the preparation of the annual account, the principles for valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of the result, as well as for the notes to the specific assets and liabilities and the results, reference is made to the notes to the consolidated annual account, if there is no further explanation provided.

Financial fixed assets

Participating interests in group companies where extensive influence is exerted on business and financial policies are valued based on the net capital value that is, however, not lower than zero. This net capital value is calculated based on the principles of Frontinus Holding B.V.

Participating interests with a negative net capital value are valued at zero. When the company guarantees (wholly or partially) debts of the participating interest concerned, a provision is created primarily at the expense of claims against this participating interest and for the remainder under the provisions of the remaining part in the losses of the participating interest or the expected payments by the company on behalf of these participating interests.

9 NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

12. Financial fixed assets

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
Participations in group companies		
MTD Nederland B.V. MTD International B.V. MTD Deutschland GmbH MTD France SARL MTD Brasil Servicos de captacao tratamento e distribulcap Ltda. MTD Fleet Service B.V. MTD Russia COO	3,963,229 11,434,832 1,301,527 194,693	4,556,129 11,790,517 892,460 85,310 101,894 34,079 18,223
	16,894,281	17,478,612
Receivables from group companies		
MTD Brasil Servicos de captacao tratamento e distribulcap Ltda. MTD Korea	1,167,500 53,000	1,116,000
	1,220,500	1,116,000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
		€
13. EQUITY		
Issued share capital Share premium reserve Legal reserves Other reserves	18,000 1,262,500 -68,074 4,741,149	18,000 1,262,500 -94,415 8,155,637
	5,953,575	9,341,722
Issued share capital		
Subscribed and paid up 180 ordinary shares at par value € 100.00	18,000	18,000
The statutory share capital amounts to €90,000.00.		
	2017	2016
		€
Share premium reserve		
Carrying amount as of January 1	1,262,500	1,262,500
Carrying amount as of December 31	1,262,500	1,262,500
	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
		€
Legal reserves		
Reserve for exchange differences	-68,074	-94,415
	2017	2016
		€
Other reserves		
Carrying amount as of January 1 Allocation of financial year net result	8,155,637 -3,414,488	2,522,852 5,632,785
Carrying amount as of December 31	4,741,149	8,155,637

14. PROVISIONS

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
	€	€
Other provisions		
Provision subsidiaries	3,516,523	744,374

15. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Finance company debt

Bank loans

The part of the bank loans entered into the balance sheet with a maturity over five years is nil. The part with a maturity of less than 1 year is included in the current liabilities.

The credit arrangement, as of July 2016 with the ABN AMRO Bank N.V. can be divided into:

- a current account credit of EUR 1.000.000 (5.5%)
- a lending exposure credit of EUR 105.000
- a 2-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 1.000.000 (4%)
- a loan, principal amount of EUR 415.000 (Borgstellings-krediet EURIBOR Loan (one-month Euribor + 2%)
- a loan, principal amount of EUR 130.000 (one-month Euribor + 2,5%).
- a 6-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 1.040.000 (Euribor + 2.5%)
- a 6-year loan with a principal amount of EUR 545.000 (Euribor + 2.5%)

The group provided the following security for the credit arrangement granted by the ABN AMRO Bank N.V.:

- pledge of moveable tangible fixed assets;
- pledge of trade receivables;
- pledge of inventories;
- pledge of all receivables;
- pledge on the receivables and rights arising from the conclusion of work contracts to be concluded and to be concluded:
- pledge on the shares of MTD Nederland B.V.;
- pledge on the shares of MTD International B.V.;
- pledge on the shares of MTD Fleet Service B.V.;
- a personnel surety from Mr. J.A.A.M. Verhoeven in the amount of EUR 500.000 secured with (i) a mortgage, 2e in rang of EUR 500.000 plus 40% covering interest and expenses, on the property mentioned in the mortgage deed of September 13, 2011 for as far as this mortgage has not been cancelled and (ii) this security is provided by Mrs. C.J.M. Verhoeven.
- joint liability for all Dutch consolidated companies
- a surplus guarantee from ABN AMRO Lease N.V.

16. CURRENT LIABILITIES

	12/31/2017	12/31/2016
Amounts payable to credit institutions		
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.	76,593	1,487,996
Repayment obligation long-term debt Loans	43,330	173,320
Trade creditors		
Creditors	86,203	4,374

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities

Tax entity

Frontinus Holding B.V. is the head of the fiscal unity for VAT in which MTD Holding B.V., MTD Fleet B.V., MTD Nederland B.V. and MTD International take part.

Frontinus Holding B.V. is head of the fiscal unity for corporate income tax in which MTD Holding B.V., MTD Fleet B.V. and MTD Nederland B.V. take part. MTD International is solely taxable for income tax.

10 OTHER DISCLOSURE

Post balance sheet events

There are no post balance sheet events that should be brought to your attention. Were necessary all post balance sheet events are included in this financial statements.

Recognition of the loss for 2017

The board of directors proposes to deduct the 2017 result from the other reserves for an amount of €3,414,488. The General Meeting of Shareholders Shareholders will be asked to approve the appropriation of the 2017 result, this proposition is already recognised in the financial statements.

Staff

During the 2017 financial year, the average number of employees converted into full-time equivalents, amounted to 5 (2016: 5).

,	2017	2016
The breakdown is as follows:		
Netherlands	5	5

Signing of the financial statements

Adoption of the financial statements

The consolidated and separate financial statements are created and adopted by the management respectively the General Meeting.

Tilburg, March 15, 2019

J.A.A.M. Verhoeven

OTHER INFORMATION

1 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: the shareholders of MTD Holding B.V. registered at Tilburg

A. Report on the audit of the financial statements 2017 included in the annual report

Our disclaimer of opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements 2017 of MTD Holding B.V. based in Tilburg. The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements and the company financial statements.

We do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the company. Due to the significance of the matter(s) described in the 'Basis for our disclaimer of opinion' section, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

The financial statements comprise:

- 1. the consolidated and company balance sheet as at December 31, 2017;
- 2. the consolidated and company profit and loss account for 2017; and
- 3. the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our disclaimer of opinion

Given the shortcomings in the irreplaceable internal control environment, we were unable to perform the audit in a rational manner to obtain reasonable assurance on the completeness of net turnover and obligations and directly related accounts as shown in the financial statements.

We are independent of MTD Holding B.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisatie (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to the going concern paragraph in the notes on page 14 of the financial statements which indicates that based on the current financial forecast the company does not have sufficient cash to meet its obligations on a short term and is therefore dependent on an agreement with (new) lenders on additional funding. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

B. Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, the annual report contains other information that consists of:

- the management report;
- other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Due to the significance of the matter described in the Basis for our disclaimer of opinion section, we have not been able to consider in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Civil Code whether or not the other information:

- is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements:
- contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We were engaged to read the other information and, based on our knowledge and understanding to be obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, to consider whether the other information contains material misstatements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the management report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

C. Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on conducting the audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. However, due to the matter(s) described in the 'Basis for our disclaimer of opinion' section, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Eindhoven, March 15, 2019

Crowe Foederer B.V.

w.g. mr. drs. H.W. Jansen RA RV